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selected, the applicants that were not selected will have their checks returned promptly.  The selected applicant will 
have their check returned promptly once the applicant executes and files a depository bond that is approved by 
Commissioners Court. 
 
RFP Questions 
There will be no pre-proposal conference.  Questions regarding this RFP, or the services requested, will be accepted 
in e-mail form only, to Gillespie County Treasurer Dana Smith  (mailto:dsmith@gillespiecounty.org) , on or before 
5pm  on April 24, 2023.  Responses to all material questions submitted will be emailed to all known proposers by 
5pm on April 28, 2023. 
 
Selection Criteria   
The following criteria will be used by the County as the weighting basis for evaluation of the proposals and the award 
recommendation. 

40 % - responsiveness and ability to provide services and reports required,  
40 % - banking services costs and earnings potential,  

 10 % - experience, references, and continuity of bank and bank officials, and 
 10 % - creditworthiness and stability of the bank. 
 
The County will consider the availability of services and the cost of those services as well as the earnings potential 
under the contract.  All these elements will be combined for evaluation of the proposals.  Award may not be made 
to the institution submitting the lowest price proposal.  The County will choose the institution submitting the best, 
most responsive overall proposal to satisfy the County’s needs. 
 
County Rights  
The County reserves the right to: 

• Waive any defect, irregularity or informality in the proposal or proposal procedures. 

• Reject any and all proposals. 

• Accept any proposal or portion thereof most advantageous to County. 

• Request additional information or require a meeting with bank representatives for clarification. 

• Cancel, revise, and/or reissue this request for proposal or any portions thereof.  

• Negotiate any conditions with proposers. 

• Modify deadlines. 

• Select any proposal deemed to be in its best interest as determined by the County. 
 

Default in promised delivery of services, without acceptable reasons, or failure to meet the terms or conditions of 
the depository contract without remedy, will represent an event of default and may result in the County having the 
right to terminate the contract, but the exercising of such right to terminate the contract does not limit any other 
remedies the County may have for damages or other relief under law. 

 
Proprietary Information   
To the extent permitted by law, proposals will be opened in a manner that avoids disclosure of the contents until 
after award of the contract.  Proprietary information contained in the proposal should be designated as such on each 
page containing the restricted information. 
 
Fees and Charges   
The County reserves the right to utilize either a fee basis or compensating balance basis (or a combination of each) 
for payment of banking services under the contract.  The County reserves the right to change the payment 
methodology during the contract period upon no less than 30 days written notice to the bank with the change 
commencing the first of the following month.  This will enable the County to take advantage of changing interest 
rate environments.   
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A complete account analysis will be required monthly regardless of the payment basis. All item and account charges 
will remain at the proposal price quoted on Attachment A for the duration of the contract period regardless of 
changes in service volumes during the period.  Should new services be required during the contract period not 
contemplated by this RFP, those services will be provided at fees not more than the bank’s then-current published 
rate and approved by the County Treasurer.   
 
The County will have accounts established to hold cash bonds and other registry / trust funds having pending cases 
in the courts of Gillespie County.  No fees may be charged to these accounts due to the ownership of the funds.  
 

SECTION 3:  COUNTY OVERVIEW 
 
The County Treasurer and County Auditor will have primary interaction with the bank on matters of banking services.  
Both officers provide financial reports to the Commissioner’s Court.  No account should be opened under the 
County’s EIN number without the written authorization of the County Auditor and the County Treasurer. 
 
Doss CCSD has two accounts, due to their status as a Common Consolidated School District, Doss CCSD is required 
to have banking accounts through the County’s Depository Contract. 
 
The County has multiple locations and officials that require separate accounts.  Currently the County utilizes twenty 
five (25) separate accounts.  The Treasurer handles reconciliation of thirteen (13) of these accounts and will also be 
responsible for administering the agreement with respect to day-to-day activities, including deposits and 
withdrawals, ACH transactions, maintenance of account balances, daily reporting, etc.  A list of County personnel 
authorized to deal directly with the bank will be provided following award of contract.  The bank shall provide the 
County with a similar list of authorized personnel. 
 
Attachment A lists the current 25 County accounts with three of these accounts being internal sweep accounts. 
Accounts reconciled by the Treasurer have blue tabs. Activity on these individual accounts is shown on separate tabs 
and a summary of all accounts is also shown on the first tab based on twelve months of account analysis information.  
As such, actual account analyses will not be made available to proposers.   
 
The County has approximately 185 employees and payroll is paid bi-weekly with 95% of County employees paid by 
direct deposit. Bank must provide the capability for the County to utilize direct deposit payroll processing, allowing 
County employees to select the bank of their choice.  
   
The County and DOSS CCSD will have interest bearing accounts established for disbursing checks written on County 
and School District funds.  Checks and transfers will be written from these accounts.  Wire transactions, ACH 
transactions, internal bank transfers and / or deposits will be made to / from these accounts.  
 
The County Reserves the right to make investments outside the Depository Bank in accordance with the Laws of the 
State of Texas and the Investment Policy of Gillespie County.  Doss CCSD also reserves the right to make investments 
outside the Depository Bank in accordance with the Laws of the State of Texas.  
 
Primary responsibility for administration of the banking services agreement resides with the Treasurer who will 
monitor the bank’s performance against provisions of the agreement, including the bank’s proposal submitted in 
the response to this RFP.   
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SECTION 4:  FINANCIAL INSTITUTION QUALIFICATIONS 
 

 

To be considered the proposal must include a response to  
each question in this Section. 

 
 
Creditworthiness 

1. Provide the most current annual financial statement.  The bank will be required to submit an audited 
statement to the County each year of the contract period as soon as it is available.  Confirm agreement to 
this requirement. 

2. Provide bank’s most current Community Reinvestment Act (CRA) rating by its rating agency.   
3. Provide the bank’s current senior and subordinate debt ratings of the bank or holding company.  As an 

alternative provide the current rating from an independent rating agency such as Highline, Veribanc, or 
comparable bank rating agency.  The bank will be liable for notifying the County within thirty (30) days of 
any change in any of these ratings during the contract period.  Confirm agreement to this requirement. 

 
Customer Service 
Service will be a primary focus of the evaluation.  Describe the bank’s philosophy and approach to satisfying this 
need through the following responses.  The County is particularly interested in high-performance customer service.   

1. How does the bank anticipate satisfying the County’s need for customer service? 
2. How will the local branch bank and holding company provide the County with relationship support?   
3. How does the bank intend to support the new and ongoing automation needs of the County?  How will this 

impact the County now and throughout the contract period, if at all?   
4. Are there any new services planned by the bank which may impact the County?  When are these planned 

to be available? 
5. Is the bank offering any transition or retention incentives?  Describe fully and quantify completely. 
6. The County requires the right to use a third party auditor to review the County’s accounts, collateral, 

transactions, and bank records at any reasonable time.  Confirm agreement with this condition. 
7. Does the bank have a formal service review process to analyze its services on a regular basis?  Describe. 
8. How often do the account representatives plan to meet with the County regarding services? 
9. What programs does the bank have in place to protect the County from fraud of all types?  Describe. 

 
References 

1. List references from three comparable Texas public entity clients, preferably counties.  For each reference, 
include the length of time under contract, a client contact, title, telephone number and email.   

 
Depository Agreement and Service Agreements 

1. Provide a copy of all the bank’s depository and service agreements which will be required to be executed 
under the contract for services rendered (including depository and collateral agreements).  Any changes 
required on the agreements will be discussed and agreed upon before award of the contract is made by the 
County. 

 
 
Implementation timeline 
The contract period will commence August 1, 2023.  The County recognizes that not all services and funds will be 
transferred by this date but expects that all services should be available by that date and that all services should be 
transferred by September 30, 2023.    
 

1. Provide a proposed, detailed timeline for implementation of the contract.  Include each activity required 
defined by its responsible party and assigned responsibilities. Denote any limitations or potential delay 
points. 
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SECTION 5: REQUIRED BANKING SERVICES 
 
 

To be considered, the proposal must include a response to each of the questions  
in this Section and all associated fees must be detailed on first tab in Attachment A.  

All fees for all services anticipated must be detailed on the Attachment adding any level of detail necessary to 
determine the full cost of the service. 

 
 
 
It is the County’s intent that the contract negotiated between the County and the Depository selected through this 
process will encompass all the services and conditions required in the RFP. Additional services offered by the 
Respondent may be included at the end of the RFP. The Required Services are minimum requirements, and any 
Respondent refusing or failing to provide such minimal services will not be considered for selection as Depository. 
 
Consolidated Account Structure with Sweep Mechanism 
The County currently utilizes three internal sweep accounts.  All accounts are interest bearing and traditionally fees 
have been paid through a combination of compensating balances and fees.  A listing of the current accounts and 
services in use is found in Attachment A.  The County wants all its funds continuously earning at the best interest 
rates.   
 
The bank should have the capability to create an automated, daily sweep to a money market mutual fund for use 
when rates rise.  Alternatively, the bank may propose an internal sweep or other structure.  Any structure should be 
designed to enhance County earnings.    
 
Alternative structures available, should be presented for discussion. Neither a repurchase agreement nor an off-
shore account of any type is acceptable as a sweep investment vehicle.   

1. Describe the account structure being proposed by the bank if there is a low interest rate environment and 
if it will change as rates rise.  Include classifications of accounts (ZBA, MMA, etc.) to be used in the structure.   

2. Describe the bank’s ability to provide a ZBA-Master structure internally and externally and indicate the 
sweep process (through a master).   

3. Do any of your sweep structures require minimum balances? 
4. Is interest from the sweeps applied at the master or individual account level? 
5. If the account structure proposed includes interest bearing or money market accounts, on what is the 

interest rate indexed or based? 
6. Will sweep activity, when used, be reported on a daily detail basis or summarized on a monthly basis?   
7. Provide the prospectus for any sweep fund alternatives. An AAA-rated, SEC registered government fund 

striving to maintain a $1 NAV must be utilized for the sweep.  
8. Is the sweep processed as the last transaction of the day?  If it is a next day sweep, describe how funds are 

collateralized for funds held overnight. 
9. The County may be required or may desire to open additional accounts or close/change accounts during 

the contract period.  Any new accounts shall be charged at the same contracted amount. Confirm 
agreement to this condition. 

10. Will the bank assess a direct balance based fee?  What is the current rate? 
11. Complete the following table with the rates for each category for the last twelve months and the current 

rate. 

Type Past 12 Months Avg Current Rate 
ECR % % 
Interest Bearing Accounts % % 
Money Market Accounts % % 
Sweep MMMF % % 
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Automated Cash Management Information Access  
The County requires web-based, automated cash management services and daily balance reporting (current and 
prior day) for timely access to balance information and transactions. It requires a high degree of automation within 
all service areas.  Imaging of all checks and image retention is required.  Imaging of deposit slips and deposit items 
is preferred.   Preferably statements will be available in electronic form. 
 
The County desires timely access to information for further download to the County’s accounting software. 
Minimum on-line services should include online balance reporting, stop pays, positive pay, ACH, account transfers, 
and wire transfers. Daily balance reporting should include detail on all transactions with summary reporting on 
closing ledger and collected balances along with one-day float, at a minimum.  

1. Provide a link to the bank’s online portal and a sign-on for evaluation. Fully describe the bank’s on-line 
service capabilities and systems, with examples and listing the system’s online service capabilities. 

2. Describe the ability to search historical transactions and reports as well as the ability to retrieve and 
download historical images. 

3. Can customized reports draw across reporting modules and activities?  Describe. 
4. When is the prior day information available?  Is intra-day information real-time or delayed?   
5. Define history retention/archiving periods available. 
6. Describe the security protocol for online services.  How is authentication and authorization provided?  How 

and by whom is the administration of the security module established and maintained?   
7. What are the hours of available technical support?  How is support provided? 

 
Standard Collection and Deposit Services  
All deposits received by the bank's established deadline must be processed on the same day.  Immediate verification 
is not required.  The bank shall guarantee immediate credit on all incoming wire transfers, on-us items, and securities 
maturities and coupons. All other checks clearing will be based on the bank’s published availability schedule. Failure 
to timely credit the account will require payment reimbursement to the County at the then-current Fed Funds rate.   

1. What is the bank’s daily cut-off time at (a) banking centers, (b) branches, and (c) vault? 
2. Are all items imaged?  Please list items and availability online. 
3. Are any deposits required to be made to a vault?  If so, where is the vault located?  Describe the process if 

the vault is not located in County limits. 
4. Does the bank provide location tracking on deposits?  Describe. 
5. What e-receivables programs are available through the bank? 
6. Does the bank require or prefer strapping and rolling?   
7. Is there any limit to the number of deposits in one bag?  Are these handled as separate advices? 
8. When are credit/debit advices sent to the County from the deposit locations? How are these advices sent?  

Are images of originals provided with each advice? 
9. Does the bank have any program to actively assist the County is collection through ACH for vendors or 

ongoing repetitive citizen payments? 
10. How does the bank handle discrepancies in deposit amounts?  What dollar limits are used for decisioning?  

What settlement process is followed? 
11. How and when does notification of return items take place?    
12. What type of deposit bags are used or required?  Are these available from the bank?  At what cost?  
13. If provisional credit is given on deposit before verification, when does verification occur?  
14. How much advance notice is required on coin and currency orders?  Can orders be placed online?  What is 

the turn-around time on orders? 
15. Include a list of all the bank's deposit locations within the County’s limits.  
16. Discuss and define any virtual collection services (outside remote deposit) offered for collection of check 

and remittance documents. 
17. Is full information on returned checks provided?  How and when? 

 
Remote Electronic Check Acceptance and Conversion  
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1. Describe the bank's process and capabilities for remote capture.  A web-based system is required. 
2. What is the final deposit cut-off time with remote?   
3. Are there any limitations on batch size or number of transmissions per day? 
4. Is the County’s scanner able to be used on your system? 
5. What options does the County have in scanners for use with the process in various volume locations?  Is 

this equipment available through the contract: purchase or lease?  List the equipment required along with 
its approximate cost(s). 

 
NSF and RCK Services (Re-presentment of Checks by ACH) 
The County does not currently utilize RCK but prefers availability for use under the contract.  Currently NSF checks 
paid to the County are automatically charged back for collection.     

1. Describe the bank’s current NSF process.  Are checks automatically charged back? When?  
2. How and when is the County notified of return items?      
3. Is the bank currently using ACH for collection of NSF checks (RCK)?  How long has the bank been providing 

this service?  Describe the process. 
4. With normal processing or RCK, how are the NSF and the later collections matched/reconciled?  Does the 

bank system cross reference the two transactions in any way? 
5. Is NSF information, image, or occurrence available on-line?  How long is it available online? 

 
Standard Disbursing Services  
Standard disbursing capability for all accounts is required.  This includes the payments of all County checks upon 
presentation.  The County requires positive pay services and prefers payee name verification.   

1. When is daily check clearing information available online through intra-day reporting?  How long are 
transaction details maintained online? 

2. Does the bank image all checks?  How are reports and details made available? 
3. The County requires that the bank shall cash free of charge all payroll checks for County employees 

regardless of the individual's account status with the bank.  Confirm agreement with this condition. 
4. Does the bank have any virtual card programs in place?  Describe fully. 
5. Describe any payment consolidation or e-payables services available.     
6. Describe the handling of exception or non-standard items through the payment consolidation process. 

Describe the error tolerance limitations and subsequent handling requirements. 
 
Reconciliation and Positive Pay   
The County does currently use positive pay for the General Checking account and will require the service in the new 
contract with complete indemnification for fraudulent checks.  Payee verification is desired. The proposal must 
provide a fully automated, web compatible transmission process.  Transmissions will be made as part of each check 
run.   

1. Describe data transmission file and timing requirements for check registers.  Are transmissions charged by 
file and by detail item? 

2. Is positive pay input for manual checks available on-line?  Describe.  
3. Is exception reporting and handling managed totally online?   
4. At what specific time is positive pay exception information reported to the County?  How is the exception 

reported: e-mail notification or must the County check for exceptions?   
5. At what specific time is the response required for County exception elections?  
6. Does the bank provide payee positive pay? 
7. Does the bank review exceptions errors for possible repair before creating a County exception item? 
8. Are all checks, including those received over-the-counter by the tellers, verified against the positive pay file 

before processing? How often is teller information updated?  If not verified, what are the process, liability, 
and security on OTC transactions?    

9. Describe your partial reconciliation services. 
10. When are reconciliation reports available?  How long are they maintained online?  Are they downloadable?  

Do they contain images of checks? 
11. Provide samples of reconciliation reports.   
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Wires and Internal Transfer Services 
The ability to send and receive wire transactions on an automated or manual basis required.  Bank must provide the 
ability to restrict outgoing wire transactions (debits) to only those authorized and must also provide notification of 
wire transactions.  
 
Incoming wire transfers must receive same day credit.  Wire initiation and release must be available online. The 
County will require compensation for delays caused by bank errors at that day’s Fed Funds rate. 

1. Can all wire transactions be initiated online?  Monitored online? 
2. Can repetitive templates be created and stored? Is there a fee for wire and transfer template storage? 
3. What level of authorization/release do repetitive or non-repetitive wires require? Is authorization for 

repetitive and non-repetitive the same? 
4. Is future dating of wires and transfers available?  How far in advance? 
5. State wire access, posting, and cut-off times. 
6. State the bank’s policy on the use of ledger balances for outgoing wires in anticipation of scheduled activity 

or incoming wires.    
7. Can internal account transfers be processed totally on-line?  Book debits/credits?   
8. Is there a fee for internal transfers? 

 
ACH Services 

1. Is online ACH service available for individual transactions as well as by transmission for batched files?  
2. What is the policy and process for handling of ACH returned items? 
3. Can ACH items and files be future dated? 
4. What specific filters and/or blocks are available on the accounts?    
5. What policy and process is used for file and item reversals and deletions? 
6. Are ACH addenda shown in their entirety on-line and on detail reporting, reports and statements?  Does 

access to this information require access to additional, specific EDI modules? 
7. The County requires pre-noting.  Is there a fee for the pre-note? 

 
Safekeeping Services 
All County investments will be made by the County Treasurer and instructions for clearing will be given to the bank 
by a County authorized individual.  The bank will be required to provide book-entry safekeeping services or through 
a correspondent.  Correspondent processing is not preferable.  All fees must be detailed on Attachment A. 
 
All securities must be cleared on a delivery versus payment (DVP) basis and ownership clearly and timely 
documented.  All interest payments and maturities shall be given immediate credit to the appropriate DDA.  
Ownership of the securities must be perfected and evidenced by an original safekeeping receipt sent directly to the 
County within one business day.  
 
The bank’s brokerage services will not be used for investment purchases in order to perfect DVP.  Certificates of 
deposit may be purchased from the bank but these will be on a competitive basis. 

1. Is trade initiation available online for securities?  Monitoring? Describe online services. 
2. Is the bank a member of FRB and DTC?   
3. If a correspondent bank is to be used, which institution will be used?  Define the process and confirm same-

day crediting/debiting on all transactions.  Describe any County actions required. 
4. How are safekeeping fees charged?  Hard charge or on the account analysis? 
5. Are notifications sent on all transactions?  When and how? 
6. What time are delivery instructions required?  Is there a fee charged for late instructions. 

 
Collateral Requirements  
The initial amount of securities to be pledged against County funds (including Trust Funds), shall be adequate to fully 
collateralize the funds of the county plus 2% and shall continuously remain as such.  The amount of the securities is 
subject to change as deposits fluctuate.  Whenever the security provided shall be in excess of the amount required, 
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the Bank shall notify the Gillespie County Treasurer and with the approval of Commissioner Court, shall be permitted 
to release such excess.  When the funds on deposit with the Bank shall for any reason increase beyond the amount 
of security provided, the Bank shall: 

• Immediately pledge additional securities to the County to the extent that the security provided shall at no 
time be less than the total amount of County funds on deposit with the bank plus 2%; and 

• Immediately notify the County Treasurer of such action. 
The County requires a bank that is fiscally strong and able to provide the services described on an uninterrupted 
basis.  As public funds the County falls under provisions of the Public Funds Collateral Act (Texas Government Code 
Chapter 2257) with additional restrictive County requirements.  If funds are, for any reason, not swept all deposits 
above FDIC insurance coverage must be collateralized to 102% with securities authorized by the County. Authorized 
collateral will include only:  

• Obligations of the US Government, its agencies and instrumentalities, including mortgage backed securities 
and CMOs which pass the bank test. 

• Obligations of any US state, their agencies and instrumentalities, and municipalities rated A or better by 
two nationally recognized rating agencies. 

• FHLB Letters of Credit. 
 

The following conditions must be met. 
▪ Collateral must be held in an independent third party bank approved by the County outside the pledging 

bank’s holding company.  
▪ All deposits will be collateralized, above FDIC insurance, at 102% of principal plus accrued interest at all 

times.  
▪ The bank is responsible for the daily monitoring and maintaining of collateral margin requirements.   
▪ Pledged collateral will be evidenced by original safekeeping receipts/report sent directly to the County by 

the Custodian and the Custodian will prepare a report of collateral pledged including description, par, and 
cusip monthly directly to the County (market value is not required).  The monthly report will not come from 
the Bank.   

▪ Substitution rights will be granted if the bank/custodian obtains the County’s prior approval and if 
substituting securities are received before previously pledged securities are removed from safekeeping.  
Collateral value will be maintained during substitution at 102% or above. 

▪ Substitution approval will not be required if the County has daily, online inquiry access to collateral 
information. 

▪ The bank shall execute a depository agreement with the County for custody of pledged securities in full 
compliance with FIRREA.  Approval of the agreement will be made by resolution of the bank’s Board or Bank 
Loan Committee. 
a. Confirm agreement to each of the collateral conditions stated above.  State any exceptions. 
b. Which institution will be used as custodian? 
c. Does the bank propose any collateral charges?  If so, what are the charges and how are they  applied? 
d. Provide the depository/collateral agreement for review. 

 
The provisions provided in the above Collateral Requirements section shall also apply to Doss CCSD, with 
notification being made to the Doss CCSD Business Manager. 
 
Account Analysis  
A monthly account analysis report shall be provided for each account and on a consolidated relationship basis 
regardless of payment basis.   

1. Provide a sample account analysis.   
2. When is the analysis available online each month.  
3. When is the analysis provided? How long is the analysis maintained on-line?   
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Monthly Statements  
The bank will provide monthly account statements on individual accounts and on a consolidated account basis. All 
accounts are on a monthly cycle using the calendar month as cut-off.  Timeliness of reporting is critical.   

1. Provide a sample statement. 
2. When are statements available online?   
3. Are statement provided in both paper and electronic formats? 
4. How long are statements maintained online? 

 
Account Executive  
To ensure smooth contract implementation and service continuation, a specific account executive and back-up must 
be assigned to the County account to coordinate services and expedite the solution of any problem.  The account 
executive should meet with County staff annually on banking matters at a minimum.   

1. Provide the outline for the client support structure to be provided to the County by the bank.   What level 
of support is provided by the local representative? 

2. Provide the name and title of the proposed account executives. 
3. How often do the representatives plan to meet with the County Treasurer regarding services? 

 
Overdrafts  
Every effort will be made by the County to eliminate net aggregate daylight and overnight overdraft situations. 
 

1. State the bank’s policy regarding aggregate overdraft charges and the fees, if any.  
 
Stop Payments  
 
The County currently averages 1 stop pay a month.   An automated input process is required.   

1. Describe the online stop pay service.   Is the process entirely done online? 
2. How long do standard stop pays and renewals remain in effect?  What options for time periods are 

available? 
3. How is a stop pay renewal or cancellation accomplished?  
4. Is there a fee for renewals? 
5. What is the deadline for same day action?   
6. Will the on-line system verify if the check was cleared before accepting the stop pay?   

 
Company Banking 
The County is interested in giving its employees the opportunity for enhanced banking services.   

1. Does the bank have a banking services program available for County employees? Describe.  
 
 

SECTION 6: ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
 
If the bank has additional services (such as e-payables and e-receivables) which may be of enhanced value or interest 
to the County, they can be proposed and fully described in this section.   Any service presented should have all 
associated costs detailed on Attachment A. 
 

 

 





























History of CASA and the Child Welfare System: 

In 1977, Seattle court judge David Soukup conceived the idea of CASA (court 
appointed special advocates) as he was presiding over child protection cases; he 
realized the weighty responsibility of the decisions he was making for children and felt 
he needed an unbiased, unrelated person to make independent investigation into the 
case, and report to him recommendations in the child's best interest.  

Soukup's idea grew into a nationwide movement and Hill Country CASA was 
established in 1989 to provide trained community volunteers to serve child residents of 
Kerr, Kendall, Bandera and Gillespie Counties in State custody due to abuse or neglect 
in their homes, and the courts making decisions about their permanence.  

There were over 30,000 Texas children in foster care in 2022. Children in foster care are 
removed from their homes to protect their safety, due to issues of abuse or neglect by 
their caregivers.  

Once a child is removed into foster care, a legal case begins in which the parents have 
one year to prove they can provide a safe and stable, drug and violence free home for 
their children. Texas law is designed for foster children’s cases to be resolved in the 
“child’s sense of time”.  

In 2022, there were 155 children in foster care from Kerr, Kendall, Bandera, and Gillespie 
Counties.  

The reason children are in foster care is not due to a lack of love from their parents, 
rather a lack of ability to safely parent. This may be due to mental health issues, 
addiction, family violence, criminal issues or other struggles.  

The parents of foster children are offered services to support healing and resolving their 
issues, so that their children can be reunited with them. The services for parents are 
tailored to their individual needs and may include supports such as drug rehabilitation, 
counseling and mental health support, help finding employment / community supports.  

For everyone involved in these cases, it is our first goal that the parents resolve the issues 
that brought their children into foster care, so that their children can go home to them. 

However, if a child's parent(s) are unable to rehabilitate the issues that brought the 
child into foster care, the parent(s) rights are subject to termination by the state. Those 
children are then in long-term foster care, and can become completely disconnected 
from their home and family communities.  

No matter how long it may take, Hill Country CASA continues to serve these children 
until a permanent home is found. (On average, the Hill Country children who left foster 
care in 2022 were in foster care 19.6 months). 

 

 



Hill Country CASA’s Current Scope of Service: 

Now in our thirty-fourth year of service, Hill Country CASA volunteers work under a 
Guardian Ad Litem (GAL) court appointment to assure every area foster child receives 
individual attention, necessary services and timely placement in a safe, loving and 
permanent home.  

Hill Country CASA's long-established primary goal is to provide a well-trained CASA for 
every child in CPS custody in our four county service area, who will conduct an 
independent investigation into the circumstances of the case, and make oral and 
written report to the presiding judiciary with best interest recommendations for the 
children involved.  

In fact, Hill Country CASA was the only one of seventy-two CASA programs in Texas to 
provide an advocate for every child in need in 2021. 

CASA volunteers are trained to get to know the children they serve, conduct individual 
investigation into the facts and circumstances of their case, and provide strong 
advocacy for the child's best interest, timely individual services, and family reunification 
whenever safely and securely possible.  

In 2022, our 75 volunteers gave 2,326 hours and traveled over 35,000 miles to child visits, 
court hearings, collaborative meetings and other events as necessary to provide strong, 
effective advocacy for children on our caseload.  

Hill Country CASA's other primary goal is to reunify children with their natural parents 
whenever possible; to this end we also provide help and support to parents working 
toward this goal. HCCASA provides a listening ear to parents, models appropriate 
parent-child interaction, and supports parents as they work to reunify of their family. 

In 2022, CASA supported the family reunification of 44 children with their parents; this 
was 47% of all Hill Country children’s cases that closed in that year. (For the most recent 
year available through public information – 2021 – statewide, the rate of family 
reunifications was 33%). 

In Conclusion: 

Texas’ large and impersonal foster care system is difficult for any child and family to be 
involved with. Hill Country CASA works to fill in the gaps and support healing and family 
for the best interest of our community’s children.  

There are many ways that the community can get involved to support families this 
holiday season. Consider donating your time or a financial gift to a local charity of your 
choice – there are many worthy causes to support in our Kerrville community that help 
families in need. Check in with families you know and offer support in this very busy time 
of year. Take an extra moment to nurture a child you know.  

The children of the Hill Country are our future and Hill Country CASA appreciates the 
community’s support of our mission in their best interest.   



Project Details

Contract Actual Difference Description
244,800 353,889          (109,089.00)     Trifolds
107,850 117,306          (9,456.00)          Flat Files

9,404 9,404              0 QuickLink Index Books

(118,545.00)     

555,526.22$    4 year payment plan @ 138,881.54

191,060.10$    Based on Run Rate of page counts
59,726.91$       Kofile Discount (31%) on Overage

131,333.19$    Net Overage

686,859.41$    Net New Project Total
138,881.56$    Minus Year One Payment
547,977.85$    Remaining Balance

Revised Years 2 - 4 182,659.28$    4 Year Payment Plan - Revised Years 2 - 4
Revised Years 2 - 5 136,994.46$    5 Year Payment Plan - Revised Years 2 - 5

Gillespie County Probate Overage
25-Apr-23

Original Contract

Overage



Trifolds –  

Boxes 1 – 84 (represents tri folded Probate Case Files) 
Boxes 1 - 63 have been processed and QC’d – this is where we get our run rate. 

• Probate actual run rate is 111 pages per inch. 
o Each shuck drawer was 12” deep for 1,332 pages. 

 
• Industry average for tri-folded Case Files is typically 75 pages per inch.  

o This would assume 900 pages per shuck drawer. 
o This held true for projects for Mason, Bexar & Webb Coun�es 

 
• The difference between the es�mated industry average and the actual page count is the 

overage. 
o Upon the ini�al assessment of the project nothing seemed out of the ordinary  
o Once project was disassembled (removed from envelopes) there were many ½ pages 

and pages writen on both sides of the document. 
o The trifolds make up the majority of the overage.  

Flat Files -  

Boxes 85 – 163  
Boxes 85 – 94 have been processed and QC’d – this is where we get our run rate. 

• Probate files were stored in filing cabinets, shelving and in leter/legal boxes. 

 

 













































































 Leos Pa i  ainting Serv cices
Leonel luna

u i s  N m erBusiness Number 8303072272

119 Acorn Dr, Fredericksburg Texas
78624

8303072272

leospaintingservices22@gmail.com

EESTIMATE

EST0210

DATE

05/28/2023

TTOTAL

USD $12,592.00

TO

ton  a ay lambarddy

(830) 990-5764

tlombardi@gillespiecounty.org

E NDESCRIPTION RATTE QTY A NAMOUNT

1 r191 airpor  t road

Int  erior $7150
W   e  1 alls and cieling 1 color
Wayn    ynes Coating 1 colror

l  PAll Pr  wep w kork
movv  l  f ue All furniture
Remov    e all wall decoration

  Caulk + r ai   epair all cr   as acks sand as r u requireded
ean  pClean - up

 - r  l al  d replace all wall decor i n  ations r   n replace all furnituree
xExt i  44erior $5442
l  PAll Pr  wep w kork

 Sand/ r memov  fl n  aie flaking paint
 - Re caue-caulk
  - - R oemove  e + R  açe weplace damaçe wood

~
Paint

l  wAll w d uood surf  eaces, exx  n tept stain t  ar ca nhe cedar calumns
all paint and materials included

$12,592.00 1 $12,592.00

TOTAL USD $12,592.00

Please leave a rating/review on
https://leos-painting-services-painter.business.site/

















FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
HILL COUNTRY REGIONAL PUBLIC DEFENDER’S OFFICE (HCRPDO) 

THE STATE OF TEXAS COUNTIES OF 
 BANDERA, GILLESPIE, KENDALL, KERR, AND MEDINA 

 
 This First Amendment to the above-referenced Interlocal Agreement (the Agreement) is 
made by and between: 
 
BANDERA COUNTY, TEXAS (BANDERA), a political subdivision of the State of Texas, acting 
through its County Judge pursuant to authority granted by the BANDERA COUNTY 
Commissioners Court on the ________ day of _____________, 2023; 
 
GILLESPIE COUNTY, TEXAS (GILLESPIE), a political subdivision of the State of Texas, acting 
through its County Judge pursuant to authority granted by the GILLESPIE COUNTY 
Commissioners Court on the ________ day of _____________, 2023; 
 
KENDALL COUNTY, TEXAS (KENDALL), a political subdivision of the State of Texas, acting 
through its County Judge pursuant to authority granted by the KENDALL COUNTY 
Commissioners Court on the ________ day of _____________, 2023; 
 
KERR COUNTY, TEXAS (KERR), a political subdivision of the State of Texas, acting through 
its County Judge pursuant to authority granted by the KERR COUNTY Commissioners Court on 
the ________ day of _____________, 2023; and 
 
MEDINA COUNTY, TEXAS (MEDINA), a political subdivision of the State of Texas, acting 
through its County Judge pursuant to authority granted by the MEDINA  COUNTY 
Commissioners Court on the ________ day of _____________, 2023. 
 
BANDERA, GILLESPIE, KENDALL, KERR, and MEDINA may be referred to herein 
individually as a Party, or collectively as Parties, acting pursuant to and in accordance with the 
Fair Defense Act, as established by the 77th legislature; Chapter 791 of the Texas Government 
Code; and the Article 26.044(b) of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure. 
 

I. 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties executed that certain Interlocal Agreement dated to be effective 
for the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 (FY22-23) grant year for the purpose of creating the Hill Country 
Regional Public Defender’s Office (HCRPDO) as an administratively organized department of 
MEDINA for the benefit of all Parties; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Parties now to wish to amend Article II, Section 3 of the Agreement; the 
Parties, in consideration of the mutual benefits and promises contained herein and for other good 
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, hereby 
revoke, annul, and otherwise render null and void Article II, Section 3 of the Agreement and hereby 
substitute and replace said Article II, Section 3 with the following: 
 



“II.  Agreement 
 
3. Each Party hereto agrees to pay its designated share of the HCRPDO to MEDINA, which 

is the administrative grantee Party operating the program on behalf of all the Parties.  The 
payments shall be made monthly with each Party paying its respective contribution based 
on the actual monthly created case percentages multiplied by the actual monthly county 
match expenses for the HCRPDO.  For example, if a Party had 100 actual cases created for 
month “A,” and the total actual cases created for month “A” was 400 cases, the case 
percentage (%) for the Party for month “A” would be 25%.  If the actual monthly county 
match expenses for month “A” were $100,000, that Party would receive an invoice for 
$25,000 for month “A” from MEDINA. 
 
The annual budget amount for each Party will be calculated on Actual Created Case 
percentages from June 1st of the previous year to May 31st of the current year multiplied 
by the county match budget expenses.  For example, June 1, 2022 through May 31, 2023 
had total created cases of 4,000 of which MEDINA had 1,000 created cases or 25%.  FY23-
24 has a county match budget expense of $1,200,000.  The FY 23-24 annual estimated 
budget for MEDINA will be $300,000 ($1,200,000 * 25% = $300,000).  Each Party paying 
for the performance of a function or service hereunder must make those payments from 
current revenues available to the Party.” 

 
II. 
 

 In all other respects, we hereby ratify and confirm all provisions of the original Agreement. 
 
 This First Amendment to the Interlocal Agreement for the Hill County Regional Public 
Defender’s Office (HCRPDO) has been SIGNED and EXECUTED this ______ day of ________, 
2023. 
 

{SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS} 
  



COUNTY OF BANDERA  COUNTY OF GILLESPIE 
STATE OF TEXAS  STATE OF TEXAS 

 
By: 

  
By: 

Honorable Richard A. Evans  Honorable Daniel Jones 
BANDERA County Judge  GILLESPIE County Judge 

 
COUNTY OF KENDALL 

  
COUNTY OF KERR 

STATE OF TEXAS  STATE OF TEXAS 

 
By: 

  
By: 

Honorable Shane Stolarczyk  Honorable Rob Kelly 
KENDALL County Judge  KERR County Judge 

 
COUNTY OF MEDINA 

  

STATE OF TEXAS   

 
By: 

  

Honorable Keith Lutz   
MEDINA County Judge   

 

 



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR THE  
HILL COUNTRY REGIONAL PUBLIC DEFENDER'S OFFICE (HCRPDO)  

BY AND BETWEEN THE STATE OF TEXAS COUNTIES OF  
BANDERA, GILLESPIE, KENDALL, KERR, AND MEDINA 

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 (FY23-24) 
 

I. Participating Counties (Parties) 
1. This INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (the Agreement) is made by and between: 

 
BANDERA COUNTY, TEXAS (BANDERA), a political subdivision of the State of Texas, acting 
through its County Judge pursuant to authority granted by the BANDERA COUNTY 
Commissioners Court on the _____ day of _______________, 2023; and 
 
GILLESPIE COUNTY, TEXAS (GILLESPIE), a political subdivision of the State of Texas, acting 
through its County Judge pursuant to authority granted by the GILLESPIE COUNTY 
Commissioners Court on the _____ day of _______________, 2023; and 
 
KENDALL COUNTY, TEXAS (KENDALL), a political subdivision of the State of Texas, acting 
through its County Judge pursuant to authority granted by the KENDALL COUNTY 
Commissioners Court on the _____ day of _______________, 2023; and 
 
KERR COUNTY, TEXAS (KERR), a political subdivision of the State of Texas, acting through 
its County Judge pursuant to authority granted by the KERR COUNTY Commissioners Court on 
the _____ day of _______________, 2023; and 
 
MEDINA COUNTY, TEXAS (MEDINA), a political subdivision of the State of Texas, acting 
through its County Judge pursuant to authority granted by the MEDINA COUNTY 
Commissioners Court on the _____ day of _______________, 2023. 
 

 
 BANDERA, GILLESPIE, KENDALL, KERR, and MEDINA may be referred to herein 
individually as a Party, or collectively as Parties. This Agreement is made pursuant to the Fair Defense 
Act, as established by the 77th Legislature through the passage of the Fair Defense Act; Chapter 791 of 
the Texas Government Code; and Article 26.044(b) of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure. 
 
2. Notices 

 
 All written notices called for or required by this Agreement shall be addressed to the following 
addresses. In addition, each Party may designate a different address by giving the other Parties at least ten 
(10) days prior written notice of such change of address:  
  



COUNTY OF BANDERA COUNTY OF KENDALL 
Honorable Richard A. Evans Honorable Shane Stolarczyk 
P.O. Box 877  201 E. San Antonio Ave., Ste. 122  
Bandera, TX 78003 Boerne, TX 78006 
  
COUNTY OF GILLESPIE COUNTY OF KERR 
Honorable Daniel Jones Honorable Rob Kelly 
101 W. Main, Unit #9  700 Main St., Ste. 101 
Fredericksburg, TX 78624 Kerrville, TX 78028 
  
COUNTY OF MEDINA  
Honorable Keith Lutz  
1300 Ave. M, Rm. 250  
Hondo, TX 78861  

 

II.  Agreement 
 
The Parties hereby agree that the following statements are true and correct and constitute the basis 

upon which each has entered into this Agreement: 
 
WHEREAS, each governing body finds that the availability of court appointed counsel for indigent 

defendants is necessary for the benefit of the public and that each has the legal authority to perform and 
to provide the government function or service which is the subject of this Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the performance of this Agreement by each Party will be in the common interest of all 

Parties and will benefit the general public; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits and promises contained herein and for 

other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the 
parties agree as follows: 

 
1. The HILL COUNTRY REGIONAL PUBLIC DEFENDER’S OFFICE (HCRPDO) is administratively 

organized as a department of and subject to the policies and procedures of MEDINA on behalf of all 
Parties. It is the intent of the Parties that the HCRPDO be funded by a grant from the Texas Indigent 
Defense Commission (TIDC) and by funds contributed by each Party. The Parties shall also participate 
in pro rata funding of the HCRPDO based upon each Party's actual monthly created caseload. The 
HCRPDO will provide court appointed counsel to adults and juveniles who are accused of, or 
appealing a conviction of, felonies or misdemeanors punishable by confinement, and who, upon 
providing proof, are not financially able to employ counsel. 

  



2. The County Courts, County Courts at Law, and District Courts (the Courts) of each Party shall 
participate in the program. The program allows the Courts of each Party to appoint the HCRPDO for 
all cases in which appointment of counsel is appropriate. The program covers adult and juvenile 
offenders. Some appointments may occur outside of this agreement due to conflicts in representation 
(i.e., multiple defendants in a case) or capital death penalty cases, which are not included in this 
agreement. Absent such a situation, the Parties agree that all eligible appointments shall be directed to 
the HCRPDO. 
 

3. Each Party hereto agrees to pay its designated share of the HCRPDO to MEDINA, which is the 
administrative grantee Party operating the program on behalf of all the Parties.  The payments shall be 
made monthly with each Party paying its respective contribution based on the actual monthly created 
case percentages multiplied by the actual monthly county match expenses for the HCRPDO.  For 
example, if a Party had 100 actual cases created for month “A,” and the total actual cases created for 
month “A” was 400 cases, the case percentage (%) for the Party for month “A” would be 25%.  If the 
actual monthly county match expenses for month “A” were $100,000, that Party would receive an 
invoice for $25,000 for month “A” from MEDINA. 

 
4. The annual budget amount for each Party will be calculated on Actual Created Case percentages from 

June 1st of the previous year to May 31st of the current year multiplied by the county match budget 
expenses.  For example, June 1, 2022, through May 31, 2023, had total created cases of 4,000 of which 
MEDINA had 1,000 created cases or 25%.  FY23-24 has a county match budget expense of 
$1,200,000.  The FY 23-24 annual estimated budget for MEDINA will be $300,000 ($1,200,000 * 
25% = $300,000).  Each Party paying for the performance of a function or service hereunder must 
make those payments from current revenues available to the Party. 
 

5. Each Party’s County Commissioners’ Court agrees to appoint two (2) representatives except MEDINA 
which agrees to appoint three (3) representatives to serve on the Oversight Board (the Board).  The 
Board is responsible for recommending the selection and removal of the Chief Public Defender and 
reviewing overall operations and activities of the HCRPDO. The Board shall be governed according 
to the Oversight Board Membership and Policies which is in a separate document from this Agreement. 

 
6. Nothing contained in this Agreement is intended to create a partnership or joint venture between the 

Parties, and any implication to the contrary is hereby expressly disavowed. It is understood and agreed 
that this Agreement does not create a joint enterprise, nor does it appoint any Party as an agent of the 
other Party, for any purpose whatsoever. 
 

7. The failure of any Party to insist upon the performance of any term or provision of this Agreement or 
to exercise any right granted hereunder shall not constitute a waiver of that Party's right to insist upon 
appropriate performance or to assert any such right on any future occasion. 

 
8. If any action, whether real or asserted, at law or in equity, arises based on any provision of this 

Agreement, venue for such action shall lie in state courts located in Medina County, Texas. This 
Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. 

 
9. The provisions and conditions of this Agreement are solely for the benefit of the Parties and are not 

intended to create any rights, contractual or otherwise, to any other person or entity. 
 

  



 
10. It is expressly understood and agreed by the Parties to this Agreement that if the performance of any 

obligation hereunder is delayed by reason of war; civil commotion; acts of God; inclement weather; 
governmental restrictions, regulations, or interferences; delays caused by unforeseen construction or 
site issues; fire or other casualty; court injunction; necessary condemnation proceedings; acts of the 
other Party, its affiliates/related entities and/or their contractors; any actions or inactions of third 
parties; or other circumstances which are reasonably beyond the control of the Party obligated or 
permitted under the terms of this Agreement to do or perform the same, regardless of whether any 
such circumstances is similar to any of those enumerated or not; the party so obligated or permitted 
shall be excused from doing or performing the same during such period of delay, so that the time 
period applicable to such performance shall be extended for a period of time equal or the period such 
party was delayed due to the event causing delay. 
 

11. This Agreement shall become effective October 1, 2023, and shall be effective through midnight on 
September 30, 2024.  Any Party may opt out of the Agreement annually on October 1st of a given 
year by giving a 90-day written notice to the Board and to all Commissioners’ Courts participating in 
this Agreement.  Otherwise, the Agreement shall automatically renew with the same renewal provision 
for any extension thereafter. 

 
12. This Agreement, including any exhibits attached hereto and any documents incorporated herein by 

reference, contains the entire understanding and agreement between the Parties as to the matters 
contained herein. Any prior or contemporaneous oral or written agreement is hereby declared null and 
void to the extent in conflict with any provision of this Agreement. This Agreement may be executed 
by multiple originals, each to be submitted for approval to each Party’s Commissioners Court. 
 

 
SIGNED AND EXECUTED this   day of   ,2023. 

 

{SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS} 

  



COUNTY OF BANDERA  COUNTY OF GILLESPIE 
STATE OF TEXAS  STATE OF TEXAS 
      
By:  By: 
Honorable Richard A. Evans   Honorable Daniel Jones  
BANDERA County Judge  GILLESPIE County Judge 
      
COUNTY OF KENDALL  COUNTY OF KERR 
STATE OF TEXAS  STATE OF TEXAS 
   
   

By:  By: 
Honorable Shane Stolarczyk   Honorable Rob Kelly 
KENDALL County Judge  KERR County Judge 
   
   
COUNTY OF MEDINA   
STATE OF TEXAS         
By:   
Honorable Keith Lutz    
MEDINA County Judge   

 

 



 

 
May 23, 2023 

 

Hon. Daniel Jones 

Gillespie County Judge 

101 W Main St Rm 101  

Fredericksburg, TX  78624‐3745  

 

Dear Judge Jones: 
 

The Texas Association of Counties Health and Employee Benefits Pool (TAC HEBP) is pleased to 

enclose Gillespie County’s employee benefit renewal for your upcoming plan anniversary date.  
 

For over a decade, the Pool renewal has been below the state average for health plan rate increases.  

We continue to see an uptick in high‐cost claimants (individuals whose claims exceed $50,000). Still, the 

Pool renewal average of 6.2% is once again below the projected 2024 medical and prescription drug 

trend (healthcare cost inflation) for Texas, which is 7–13%.  
 

Renewal rates are set annually using a comprehensive actuarial process that determines the amount 

needed by the Pool to fund claims and operating costs for the coming year. We then evaluate each 

individual county or district based on a combination of the group’s size, claims experience, high‐cost 

claimants, age and gender statistics, and geographic area (healthcare claims vary significantly by 

geographic region of the state). Based on this analysis, your group’s renewal rate may be above or 

below the Pool average. Your renewal rates for Plan Year 2024 are enclosed, along with your TAC 

Employee Benefits and Wellness Consultants’ contact information. Your renewal information may 

include alternate benefit plans (if not, alternates are available upon request). 
 

We are pleased to announce several changes/enhancements to TAC HEBP dental, life and vision 

products as result of a recent RFP for those offerings. Please see the material included with your 

renewal packet for more information. 

 

TAC HEBP understands how valuable healthcare benefits are for your employees and their families.  

We appreciate your partnership with the Pool and want to continue helping Gillespie County offer this 

important benefit. Again, we thank you for your membership in the Pool and look forward to working 

with you during the upcoming plan year. 
 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Quincy Quinlan, Director 

Health and Benefits Services Department 

Texas Association of Counties 

cc: Jennifer Doss 

 

 



 

Contact your TAC Employee Benefits Consultant right away if you: 

 Want to discuss alternates (which may lower rates), and/or to learn about the impact of 

changes to your plan 

 Want information about other TAC HEBP employee benefit plans (Dental, Life, or Vision) 

 Are considering changes to your personnel policies that will affect benefits (such as 

adding/dropping retiree benefits, changing waiting period, etc.)  

     Your Employee Benefits Consultant: Ernesto Martinez (ernestom@county.org) (800) 456‐5974 

 Healthy County forms: Your renewal packet includes Healthy County Contacts and CSI 

(County Specific Incentive) documents. Please review and make changes as needed to your 

Wellness contact information. Please complete both forms and return them with your 

renewal. Contact your TAC Wellness Consultant if you have any questions. 

    Your Wellness Consultant:  Mark Zollitsch (markz@county.org) (800) 456‐5974. 

 Employee Open Enrollment:   You have the option to allow employees to make their open 

enrollment changes online through the Employee Self‐Service portal by logging on to 

https://mybenefits.county.org.  

 Affordable Care Act Fees: The HEBP Board voted to pay 2023 ACA fees on behalf of Pooled 

groups; see attached ‘Health Care Reform Updates’ document for details. 

 Open Enrollment Toolkit: This will be sent via email by July 18 and contains the forms and 

notices your group will need to process employee benefit renewals. 

 When It’s Due: Once your renewal benefit decision has been approved, complete Gillespie 

County’s Renewal Notice and Benefits Confirmation (RNBC) AND Healthy County 

Wellness Contacts and CSI forms, print and initial/sign where indicated, and return to TAC 

HEPB via email, or fax to (512) 481‐8481 on or before the date shown below.  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED: Please present the renewal, with Alternates if desired, to the 

Commissioners  Court  for  a  decision.  Once  the  renewal  plan  has  been  selected, 

complete the RNBC form online, and return the initialed and signed RNBC to TAC 

no later than June 28, 2023.   

NOTE: Submitting your RNBC after the due date will result in a delay in implementing 

your benefit plan renewal, including employee enrollment changes. 

Gillespie County’s Renewal Rate change(s) for Plan Year 2024: 

Health Plan:   7.2%   

Dental Plan:  ‐10.5%  (Note: Dental benefit improvements for PY2024, see attached) 

Life Plan(s):  No change to current Life rates. (Note: New Life coverage provider for PY2024, see attached)   

Vision Plan:  No change to current Vision rates. (Note: New plan options for PY2024, see attached) 

NOTE: Deadline for returning signed renewal documents to TAC HEBP: June 28, 2023  



TAC HEBP Member Contact Designation
Gillespie County

CONTRACTING AUTHORITY

Name/Title Jennifer Doss/HR Director

Address

Phone

101 West Main St, Unit 11

830--30-7-37

Fax

Email

830-307-3782

jdoss@gillespiecounty.org

Fredericksburg, TX 78624-3745

As specified in the Interlocal Participation Agreement, each Member Group hereby designates and appoints, as indicated in the

space provided below, a Contracting Authority of department head rank or above and agrees that TAC HEBP shall NOT be required

to contact or provide notices to ANY OTHER person.  Further, any notice to, or agreement by, a Member Group’s Contracting

Authority, with respect to service or claims hereunder, shall be binding on the Member.  Each Member Group reserves the right to

change its Contracting Authority from time to time by giving written notice to TAC HEBP.

Please list changes and/or corrections below.

BILLING CONTACT

Name/Title Jennifer Doss/HR Director

Address

Phone

101 W. Main Street, Unit 11

830--30-7-37

Fax

Email

830-307-3782

jdoss@gillespiecounty.org

Frederickburg, TX 78624

HIPAA Secured Fax

Please list changes and/or corrections below.

Responsible for receiving all invoices relating to HEBP products and services.

COUNTY REPRESENTATIVE

Name/Title Jennifer Doss/HR Director

Address

Phone

101 West Main St, Unit 11

830-307-3772

Fax

Email

830-307-3782

jdoss@gillespiecounty.org

Frederickburg, TX 78624

Please list changes and/or corrections below.

HEBP's main contact for daily matters pertaining to the health benefits.

______________________________________________________           Date:___________________
Signature of County Judge or Contracting Authority

______________________________________________________

Please PRINT Name and Title

The Texas Association of Counties would like to thank you for your membership in the only all county-owned and
county directed Health and Employee Benefits Pool in Texas.

36885  - Gillespie County,  2023-2024 Renewal Notice and Benefit Confirmation



 

HEALTHY COUNTY WELLNESS CONTACT DESIGNATION 
     Gillespie County 

 
WELLNESS COORDINATOR 

 
The Wellness Coordinator is the primary contact regarding the Healthy County wellness program. The 
wellness coordinator is responsible for administrating Healthy County components and informing 
employees of all wellness resources available. 

 
Current Wellness Coordinator  Please list changes and/or corrections: 
Name: Ms. Jennifer Cude Doss 

Title: HR Director 
 

Address: 101 W Main St Unit #11  
      Fredericksburg, TX 78624‐3745 

 

Email: jdoss@gillespiecounty.org 
 

Phone Number: (830) 307‐3772 

Fax Number: 

 

WELLNESS SPONSOR 
 
The Wellness Sponsor is responsible for supporting the coordinator in administrating Healthy County 
components and encouraging county employees to access all Healthy County wellness resources 
available. An elected official in this role is preferred to illustrate management support for wellness. 

 
Current Wellness Sponsor  Please list changes and/or corrections: 
Name:  

Title:  

Address:  
 
 

Email:  
 

Phone Number:  

Fax Number: 

 

 

Contracting Authority Signature:    
 

Date:   



 
 

HEALTHY COUNTY: COUNTY SPECIFIC INCENTIVE PROGRAM 
 
A County Specific Incentive (CSI) is a wellness program that rewards employees and/or spouses for healthy 
behaviors such as completing an annual exam, tobacco affidavit, or participating in a physical activity 
program in exchange for avoiding a premium contribution, a lower monthly premium, earn additional days 
of PTO, or other rewards decided on by the County or District. Penalties and Rewards are administered at 
the county or district level. 
 
Healthy County is available to assist in the process of designing, communicating, and tracking a CSI. 
Employees will be able to view their progress and completion of the incentive online or on the mobile app. 
 

 
YOUR COUNTY OR DISTRICT’S CSI 
 
Our records indicate that your County or District does not currently have a CSI. Please make a selection 
below to let us know if you would like to implement a CSI or learn more about implementing a CSI. Your 
county or district’s Wellness Consultant will reach out to you to discuss design options. Also, please feel 
free to contact your county or district’s Wellness Consultant at any time to begin this process. If your 
County or District decides to implement a CSI, there is a six week waiting period before employees can view 
the program online.  
 
 

☐ We would like to implement a CSI Program for the 2023-2024 plan year. 
 

☐ We are interested in learning more about the CSI Program.  
 

☐ We are not interested in learning more about the CSI Program at this time.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

County or District Name: _______________________________________________________ 
 

Printed Name and Title: _______________________________________________________ 
 

Contracting Authority Signature: ________________________________________________  
 
Date: _____________________ 













 
 

Affordable Care Act (ACA) Update for 2023 – 24 Plan Year 
 
ACA Related Legislation 

 

As of the date of this printing, ACA regulations and requirements remain in effect. TAC HEBP 
continues to monitor legislative efforts to modify the ACA, and will provide education and guidance 
to our Pool members if and when changes affecting your plans and/or reporting requirements are 
forthcoming. We utilize outside sources as well as TAC staff to monitor and analyze this issue. The 
guidance in this document is based on the law as it currently exists. However, the update should not 
be regarded as legal advice. We encourage you to check with your county attorney for a thorough 
discussion of statutory interpretation issues. 

 

Large Employer Coverage Mandates 
 

Effective for plan years beginning on or after Jan. 1, 2016, employers with 50 or more full time 
equivalent employees must offer health coverage to at least 95% of employees who work an average 
of 30 hours per week or more. The coverage must meet minimum value (pay at least 60 percent of 
covered costs; all TAC plans comply with this requirement) and be considered affordable (employer 
cannot collect more than 9.61% of employee’s W-2 Box 1 income for self-only coverage). 

Measurement Periods 
 

Employers should have defined a standard measurement period of between 3 and 12 months for 
tracking the hours of part-time and variable-hour employees. For plan years beginning on or after 
January 1, 2015, employees who work on average 30 hours per week or more during the preceding 
measurement period must be offered health coverage. The employee must be offered coverage for a 
period of time equal to or greater than the length of the measurement period but not less than 6 
months. Coverage will start after a standard administrative period of not more than 90 days. 

ACA Fees 
 

ACA fees for this plan year are as follows: The Patient-Centered Outcomes Research Institute 
(PCORI) fee is to help fund research relating to patient-centered outcomes and evaluating risks and 
benefits of medical treatments, services, etc. This fee was originally set to end after 2019, but has 
been reinstated. For 2022, the fee was $3.00 per member per year, payable in July, 2023.  

For the 2023-24 plan year, the HEBP Board of Directors has elected to pay these fees on behalf of all 
Pool members. 



ACA Reporting 
 

2023 is the 9th year of reporting requirements under the ACA.  In January 2024*, all employers 
with 50 or more full time equivalent employees must provide a form 1095C to every employee or 
former employee who worked full time for any month during calendar year 2022. (Full time for 
ACA purposes is working 30 hours per week on average over the course of the employer’s 
measurement period.) NOTE: The IRS now requires employers who file more than ten (10) 1095C 
forms to file them electronically (prior to 2023 the threshold was 250 returns). 
* Historically, each year the IRS has extended this deadline to the end of February. 
 
A copy of these forms must be provided to the IRS along with an informational transmittal form 
(1094C). The purpose of this reporting is to allow the IRS to determine whether the employer has 
satisfied the ACA Employer Mandate, and to determine whether employees and their dependents 
were eligible for subsidies when purchasing coverage through the Federal Exchange.  
 
TAC HEBP will continue offering ARTS (Affordable Care Act Reporting and Tracking Service) to 
counties and districts who utilize our health plans at no charge, which will enable them to produce 
the necessary forms. In addition to producing the required forms and filing them with the IRS, 
ARTS will also track lookback measurement periods and perform affordability testing when 
applicable. 

Your employees and any covered retiree or COBRA participant may also be issued a form 1095B 
from TAC HEBP. The 1095B provides proof of individual coverage for employees and their enrolled 
dependents. Although penalties were eliminated for the ACA Individual Mandate as of 1/1/2019, the 
IRS has not eliminated the requirement for producing and filing these forms. Forms for calendar 
year 2023 will be available upon request only in February 2024. The forms will be filed with the IRS 
as required.  

Limits on Cost-sharing and Combined maximum out-of-pocket 
 

Effective for plan years beginning on or after Jan. 1, 2014, non-grandfathered health plans are 
subject to limits on cost-sharing or out-of-pocket costs. For 2023-2024, out-of-pocket expenses may 
not exceed $9,100 for self-only coverage and $18,200 for family coverage. Out-of-pocket costs 
which apply to these limits include medical plan co-payments, deductibles, and co-insurance AND 
prescription co-payments and deductibles. 

 

 
 
 
 

Updated May 2023 









 
Frequently Asked Questions about Grandfathered Health Benefit Plans 

 
1) What is a “grandfathered plan”? 

Grandfathered health plans under the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (ACA) are 
those existing without major changes to their provisions since  
March 23, 2010, the date of the ACA's enactment. 

 
2) What makes a non-grandfathered plan different? 

Grandfathered plans do not have to comply with several ACA requirements, including those listed 
below, which Non-grandfathered plans must comply with: 

 Provide coverage for preventive care without member cost-sharing (no co-pays, 
deductibles, or coinsurance) when using an in-network provider.  There are over 60 
services included in this requirement, including annual wellness visits for all ages, age 
and gender appropriate immunizations and screenings, and contraceptive services for 
women.  A full listing can be found at http://www.healthcare.gov/what-are-my-preventive-
care-benefits 

 Limitations on out-of-pocket maximum amounts 
 External review of appeals: a member who contests the denial of a service 

recommended by his/her medical provider can request an appeal by a federally 
appointed external review board; the cost of this appeal is charged to the plan 

 Coverage for out-of-network emergency services at no additional cost over in-network 
cost  

 Coverage of routine costs associated with clinical trials 
 

3) What causes a plan to lose grandfathered status? 
Changing the balance of employer and employee share of costs as follows: 
 Increase co-pays by more than $5 or a percentage equal to medical inflation  

plus 15%, whichever is greater.   

Example: if the plan had a $20 office visit co-pay in March of 2010, it could be increased to $25 
without losing grandfathered status 

 Increase deductible or maximum out-of-pocket amount by more than a percentage equal to 
medical inflation plus 15%, whichever is greater.   

Example: if the plan had a $500 deductible and a $2500 out-of-pocket maximum in March of 2010, it 
could increase the deductible to $600 and the out-of-pocket maximum to $3100 without losing 
grandfathered status (note that these are non-standard amounts for TAC HEBP plans) 



 
 Decrease percentage of plan coinsurance rate by any amount. 

Example: if the plan had a 90% coinsurance rate in March of 2010, it could not decrease the rate to 
80% without losing grandfathered status 

 Lower the employer contribution rate by more than 5% for any group of covered persons, or 
increase employee contribution rate from $0 to any amount. 

Example: if the employer paid $1000 per month toward the cost of employee and spouse coverage in 
March of 2010, it could not decrease the contribution below $950 without losing grandfathered status 

 Add or reduce an annual dollar limit (overall or for a specific service). 

Example: if the plan had no limit on charges for physical therapy services in March of 2010, it could 
not impose a $5000 per year maximum on them without losing grandfathered status 

 Eliminate or substantially reduce benefits for a particular condition. 

Example: if the plan covered counseling and prescription drugs to treat certain mental disorders in 
March of 2010, it could not eliminate coverage for counseling without losing grandfathered status 

 
4) What plan changes can be made which will not cause the plan to lose grandfathered status? 
 Changing insurer or third-party administrator, as long as benefits don’t change 

 Changing from self-insured to fully-insured, as long as benefits don’t change 

 Increasing benefits, including adding a wellness program 

 Passing along premium increases, as long as cost-sharing percentages or flat dollar amounts 
increase by <5% (exception: if employee contribution is $0, no increase is allowed). 

 Adding a coverage tier (such as employee + 1 child), as long as cost-sharing percentages are 
consistent with other tiers and stay within the 5% guidelines 

 Moving drugs to a different copay tier because the drugs have become available as generic  

 Changing provider networks, as long as benefits don’t change 

 Changes required by law 

 

ADDITIONAL NOTES: 
 
 Because of the additional coverage requirements and reduction of employee cost share 

required by the ACA, changing from grandfathered to non-grandfathered status may result in 
a small rate increase.  For TAC HEBP groups, this increase is estimated at less than 1%. 

 Under the current regulations, there is no specific end date for grandfathered status. 
 Plan changes are measured cumulatively since March 2010. 
 Plans must include a notice about grandfathered status in significant participant 

communications, such as enrollment materials and summary plan descriptions. 
 





























































 
 
Our fees are based on the time required by the individuals assigned to the engagement at our standard 
billing rates.  Our estimated fee for this engagement is $3,000-$5,000. We will notify you immediately 
of any circumstances we encounter which could significantly affect our initial estimate. 
 
If the foregoing is in accordance with your understanding, please sign and return to us the duplicate 
copy of this letter. 
 
Neffendorf & Blocker, P.C. 
NEFFENDORF & BLOCKER, P.C. 
Fredericksburg, Texas 
 
 
 
Acknowledged: 
 
GILLESPIE COUNTY 
 
 
                                                                                
Daniel Jones, Gillespie County Judge 
 
 
                                                                                
Marcie Schneider, Gillespie County Auditor 
 
 
  



 
 
 SUPPLEMENT TO ENGAGEMENT LETTER 
 
 
 
Cash 
 
  1. Obtain bank reconciliations for all Justice of the Peace accounts at December 31, 2022 and 
compare to the general ledger. 
 
  2. Review reconciling items and trace to subsequent clearance or disposition. 
 
  3. Perform surprise cash count. 
 
  4. Scan cash receipts and disbursements for significant and unusual transactions near year end. 
 
  5. Perform an accounting for cash at December 31, 2022. 
 
General Ledger 
 
  1. Review financials for comparison to prior period and budget.  
 
  2. Scan the detail general ledger for unusual items and apparent miscoded transactions. 
 
Collection/Disbursements 
 
  1. Review receipts and compare amounts submitted to the Treasurer and other 

agencies to collection amounts. 
 
  2. Reconcile the collections per monthly reports to deposits per bank and receipt 

register. 
 
 






